
 

 
 
 
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3844 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Appointments and Conditions of 

Service Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Wednesday 2 October 2024 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Council Chamber 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Democratic Services 

committees@gedling.gov.uk 

0115 901 3844 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor John Clarke 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor Michael Payne 

 
Councillor Michael Adams 
Councillor Paul Hughes 
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth 
Councillor Marje Paling 
Councillor Viv McCrossen 

 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note that this meeting will be live streamed on the Council's YouTube 
channel and via the website (www.gedling.gov.uk). At the start of the meeting 

the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being broadcast. 
 

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 

with the Council’s published policy. 
 

For more information about how your personal data is collected and used please 
view our privacy notice https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/  

 
Responsibility of committee: 
 
1) To conduct the process of appointment, dismissal or taking disciplinary action in respect of 
the Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service and make recommendations to full Council in 
relation to appointment and dismissal. 
2) Power to suspend the Chief Executive pending an investigation and to appoint an 
independent investigator to conduct an investigation in relation to allegations concerning the 
Chief Executive. 
3) To determine appropriate disciplinary action, short of dismissal, in respect of the Head of 
Paid Service. 
4) To appoint Statutory Chief Officers and non-Statutory Chief Officers. 
5) To dismiss or take disciplinary action in respect of Chief Officers, other than the Head of 
Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Financial Officer. 
6) To conduct the process of dismissal or taking disciplinary action in respect of the 
Monitoring Officer or Chief Financial Officer. To determine appropriate disciplinary action, 
short of dismissal, and make recommendations to full Council in relation to dismissal. 
7) To approve corporate employment policies which form the terms and conditions of Council 
employees and determine the standard terms and conditions on which employees hold office 
including procedures for disciplinary action and dismissal. 

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/


 

 
 

8) To appoint Proper Officers, other than where such appointment is reserved to full Council. 
9) To designate an Officer as Chief Financial Officer. 
10)To designate an Officer as Head of Paid Service and to ensure the provision of sufficient 
staff and other resources. 
11)To designate an Officer as Monitoring Officer and to ensure the provision of sufficient staff 
and other resources. 
12)To provide staff and other resources to a person nominated by the Monitoring Officer. 
13)To approve any proposals for significant restructuring of the Council’s management 
structure proposed by the Chief Executive. 
14)To approve any proposals from the Chief Executive for any changes to salary levels 
(including ranges of salaries) for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

 

1   Apologies for absence  

2   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 1 
July 2024 

5 - 6 

3   Declaration of interests  

4   Consultation closure - implementation of mileage rates 7 - 11 

 Report of the Director of Transformation (Acting Assistant Director Workforce)    

5   Any other item which the Chair considers urgent  

6   Exclusion of Press and Public  

 To move that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
ensuing reports on the grounds that the report involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

7   Electric Car Lease Scheme (Consultation commencement) 13 - 28 

 Report of the Climate Change Officer & Director of Transformation  



MINUTES 
APPOINTMENTS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE COMMITTEE 

 
Monday 1 July 2024 

 
Councillor John Clarke (Chair) 

 
Councillor Michael Adams 
Councillor Paul Hughes 
Councillor Jenny Hollingsworth 

Councillor Marje Paling 
Councillor Viv McCrossen 

 

Absent: Councillor Michael Payne 

Officers in Attendance: D Archer and M Hill 

 
9    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Payne 
 

10    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 11 JUNE 2024  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

11    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
None. 
 

12    ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
None. 
 

13    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, the Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
that under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration 
of the ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

14    SELECTION TO THE POST OF DIRECTOR OF PLACE  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the committee: 
 

1) Formally confirms the recommendation to appoint the successful 
interviewee for the post of Director of Place following interviews 
conducted by Members of this committee on 25 June.  

2) Authorises the Monitoring Officer to notify the Executive of the 
committee’s recommendation and to ask if there are any material 
objections to the appointments.  

3) Notes that, should there be no such material objections received from 
the Executive, that the Leader of the Council shall confirm the post 
holder into post from a date determined by the Chief Executive. 

 
15    SELECTION TO THE POST OF DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the committee: 
 

1) Conducted the selection process and determined the first and second 
choice appointable candidates for the post of Director of Operations.; 
and  

2) Agreed the starting salary to be offered from within the three-point 
range detailed in the report; and  

3) Informed the Monitoring Officer of the recommendation of the 
Committee and asked them to implement due process to notify the 
Executive prior to formal offer of appointment. 

 
 
 

The meeting finished at 3.00 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 6



 

 

 
 
 
Report to: Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee  
 
Subject: Mileage rates- consultation closure     
 
Date:  2 October 2024  
 
Author: Director of Transformation (Acting Assistant Director Workforce)   
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
Firstly, to report to committee the consultation response received from trade unions 
and from the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee (27 August 2024) and 
secondly to ask the committee to approve the recommendation to implement the 
proposal for an electric vehicle car allowance rate that will supplement the other 
existing rates for travel already adopted by the Council together with the formalisation 
of the currently used cycle mileage rate.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Appointments and Conditions of Service Committee is recommended to: 

 

2.1 Receive the consultation comments from trade unions, and comments and 

recommendations from the Joint Consultative and Safety Committee (JCSC).  

 

2.2 Having considered consultation feedback from trade unions and the JCSC, to 
authorise implementation the proposals set out in Section 4 of the report. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The current mileage rates used within the Council to reimburse business travel 

are shown in the table below: 
 
 

Car user mileage allowance: 52.2p pr mile 
Motorcycle allowance:  24p per mile 
Cycle allowance:   20p per mile 

 
These rates are those set by the Local Government Association (LGA) and have 
not been altered since 2010 although they remain higher for car mileage than the 
rates set by HMRC for which tax is not deducted.  
 
HMRC rates, which also have remained static since 2010 are: 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Car user mileage allowance: 45p per mile (25p after 10,000 business miles) 
Motorcycle allowance:  24p per mile 
Cycle allowance:   20p per mile 
Carrying fellow employees on a business journey can also be claimed at an extra 
5p per mile. 
 
HMRC also recognises a mileage rate of 45p per mile (25p after 10,000 miles) for 
business use of a personal electric car. 

 
3.2 Locally, the Council does not have a recognised mileage rate for electric vehicles 

of any type. This position does not support the Council’s aspiration to be carbon 
neutral by 2030.   

  
3.3 Consultation with trade unions (UNISON and GMB) commenced 21 March 2024.  

The comments made by UNISON are shown at Appendix 1. There is no formal 
management response as the comments are supportive in nature and don’t 
suggest any amendment to the proposal.  No comments have been received from 
GMB in respect to the proposed rates. 

 
3.4 The JCSC of 27 August was supportive of the proposals and welcomed the 

recognition of expenses for electric vehicles as this is a clear message of support 
for the Council’s ambition for carbon neutrality. There was a suggestion that the 
rate of 5p per mile for the carrying of additional passengers for a car journey 
could be increased, perhaps by one or two pence, if the Appointments and 
Conditions of Service Committee were so minded. 

 
 
4. PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 It is proposed that the Council adopts a rate of mileage payments for electric 

vehicles based on the local rates already used and also as informed by the 
HMRC where local rates do not currently exist as follows: 
 
Car user mileage allowance (all fuel types including electric): 52.2p per mile 
Motorcycle allowance (all fuel types including electric):  24p per mile 
Cycle allowance (including electric bikes and scooters):  20p per mile 
Carrying fellow employees on a business journey can also be claimed at an extra 
5p per mile. 
 

4.2   The suggestion of paying a slightly higher rate to drivers that car share is 
acknowledged although, from a management perspective, the proposal would be 
to adopt the HMRC rate as stated in 4.1. To pay a higher rate than the HMRC 
rates for this additional element of the allowances would attract taxation and 
would diminish the value of what would already be a relatively small payment- 
there would be almost no value in the additional payment if it was to be taxed.  
 

4.3 It is also proposed that where they exist, the LGA rates should continue to be 
used by the Council until they are exceeded by the HMRC rate for untaxed 
payment at which time the HMRC rate should apply. 
  

4.4 The introduction of an electric bike allowance is designed offer incentive to those 
people who might make short business trips within the borough and who might 
otherwise use a car for the journey. Due to the geography of the borough it is 

Page 8



unlikely to be the case that people would currently be using a pedal cycle for 
those journeys.  

 

4.5 The proposals, if supported for implementation will be applied with immediate 
effect. 

 
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

 
Alternatives are: 
 

5.1 To not recognise a mileage rate for use of electric vehicles although to do this 
would discourage the use of this type of transport for business use and so would 
almost certainly have a negative environmental impact. 

 
5.2 To apply a different rate of mileage allowance, including an enhanced rate beyond 

the 5p per mile for the carrying of additional passengers. Although this would be 
possible, if rates were increased substantially then it is likely to be seen as 
divisive within the organisation. Any mileage payments made above HMRC 
payments are taxable.    

  
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 The level at which mileage rates are set are not bound by legislation other than 

tax law that requires the payment of tax above thresholds set by HMRC. 
 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 Working on the assumption that most business mileage, if not undertaken in an 
electric vehicle, would be undertaken in a petrol or diesel vehicle then the adoption 
of an electric car user allowance will be cost neutral.   

 
7.2 Mileage costs are already included in existing staffing budgets and reflect the 

expected amount of travel in any service area based on job types.  
 
 

8. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  
 

8.1 No equality implications are identified.  
 

 
9. CARBON REDUCTION/ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 The proposal and recommendations clearly have a positive impact and support the 

Council’s carbon reduction plan through the encouragement to move to electric 
vehicles with no financial impact in terms of business mileage claims.  

 
10. APPENDICES 

 
10.1 Appendix 1: Trade union feedback.   

            
11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
11.1 There are no additional background papers. 

Page 9



 
 

Statutory Officer approval  
 
Approved by:  Chief Financial Officer 
Date: 6 March 2024 
 
Approved by:   Monitoring Officer 
Date: 6 March 2024  
 

 
 

Page 10



Appendix 1 
 

Union feedback 
 

 
From: Susan Buchanan <Susan.Buchanan@gedling.gov.uk>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 3:33 PM 
To: David Archer <David.Archer@gedling.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Introduction of mileage rates for electric vehicles  
 
Hi David, 
 
Just to confirm Unison has no issues with the proposed rates for electric vehicles 
 
Kind Regards 
 
 
Susan Buchanan 
Senior Policy and Systems Officer 
Gedling Borough Council 
Civic Centre, Arnot Hill Park 
Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 6LU 
0115 9013762 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2024
	4 Consultation closure- implementation of mileage rates
	7 Electric Car Lease Scheme (Consultation commencement)

